
NSIVE SURVEY Historic Preservation Division State Historical Society of Wisconsin
City, Village or Town: County: 

I Kaukauna ^ Outagamie \---~"

Street Address:

309 Desnoyer Street""
>

Current Name & Use:

Holy Cross Church
Film Roll No.

17

Negative No. 
Affix Contact Prints

Facade Orient. 

< E

Original Name & Use: Source

2 ,, ^
Holy Cross Church &
Dates of Construction /Alteration Source 

1914 A,D

Architect and/or Builder: Source

3 Architectural Significance
t) Represents work of a master 
O Possesses high artistic values 
(^Represents a type, period, or method of construction 
O Engineering 
O None

Architectural Description and Significance: 

See Continuation Sheet

Interior visited? Q Yes O No
U Sources of Information (Reference to Above)

|» Kaukauna Times, Oct. 31, 1913; June 12, 1914

Rummel, Rev. Leo 0., 0. Praem, History of the 
B Catholic Church in. Wlftronsin, t> 1RQR Frrf^Kt^

of Columbus, Wisconsin Council, P. 650, 651. 
i£*Bubolz, Gordon A., Lillian Mackesv r et. al.. ,......_

editors, Land of the Fox, 1949, Appleton, WI,
Outagamie County State Centennial Committee,

—— :-Inc., p. 190. ——————————————————— "•'"— " """ ' 

fj Cornerstone

Surveyor: Date: 
M. Betz 4/12/83

USGS Quad and UTM Reference: Acreage: .Less than
See Continuation Shebt one acre
Current Owner: Rev. Mi^e Hoffman, priest 

Holy Cross Congregation
Current Owner's Address: 

309 Desnoyer Street

Legal Description: The nominated property inclu 
only the church building and is described 
thusly: the southerly 75 • of lots 16-18, 
Block 11, Lawe, Mead, and Black Addition.

Previous Owners Dates Uses Source

4 Historical Signif icaijice
O Assoc. with lives of significant persons 
OAssoc. with significant historical events 
O Assoc. with development of a locality 
O Other:
® None Period^ of significance:

Historical Background and Significance:

See Continuation Sheet

J\ Representation in Previous Surveys 

QHABS QLDMK ©WlttP QNRHP
O other:

Tf Condition
VQlexcellent OROod Ofair O.poor O ruins

O District:

Opivotal O contributing O non-contributing.

y Opinion of National Register Eligibility
date: 4/12/83 initials: MB

® eligible Onot eligible O unknown 
O national O state ©local

street 

Desnoyer Street

^ I
0 1 vo §

ri

^ 
O

, * 
toy

04 
(D

1 section

nap warne
City Engineer

M g 
^J t*

VO o 
Oro



Holy Cross Church (309 Desnoyer Street) 
Intensive Survey Form - Continuation Sheet (1)

Architectural Statement:

Description: Holy Cross Church (1916), located at the northwest corner of Desnoyer and 
Doty Streets, exhibits both Romanesque and Gothic elements. Orientated east-west with a 
cruciform plan, the main portion of this cream-colored brick building (including the nave) 
is contained within a large gable roof but is intersected by projecting gables formed by ••:'.::. 
the transept. On the north and south facades, small turrets flank the gables (which display 
brick corbelling). Pilasters are located between the side aisle windows. The recessed 
triple arch entranceways of the front facade have small round windows above the doorway. 
Statuary is located in a niche above the large arched stained glass window with quatrefoil 
tracery (similar windows are located on the north and south gables as well). Anchoring the 
main facade is a four section square tower located at the southwest corner of the church. 
Each side of the uppermost level of the tower has a clock and paired louvred openings 
contained within a recessed arch. Four small turrets and four pedimented gables surround a 
pointed steeple. Crosses top both the steeples and the peak of the gables.

The interior plan has round rib vaulting and consists of a gallery and choir over the 
narthex; a central nave crossed by a transept; and a semi-circular apse which displays six 
round arch stained glass windows and an impressive marble altar. The columns of the nave 
arcade have decorative foliated capitols.

Holy Cross School is also located near the church. This elementary school consists of 
several modern buildings which are two story rectangular brick blocks with large expanses 
of glass. The modern two-story brick rectory building is adjacent to the church. All of 
these structures were built within the last twenty-five years and will not be included in 
the nomination.

Significance; Holy Cross Church reflects the great influence of Gothic Revival design on 
ecclesiastic architecture in Kaukauna. The building, with its nearly complete integrity, :". 
is a locally significant example of transitional Romanesque/Gothic design. The tower 
rising at the southwest corner of the church displays both round arch windows characteristic 
of Romanesque architecture as well as the pointed steeple of the Gothic. Although its size 
is not as immense as St. Mary's Catholic Church, the interior of Holy Cross is no'.less 
distinguished with its marble altar and beautiful stained glass.

Historical Statement: Historically interesting as the church, which serves the original 
Catholic parish in Kaukauna, Holy Cross Church was constructed in 1914 after members of 
pioneer north side families, including the Grignons, joined with more recent Catholic 
residents and even non-Catholics in a fund-raising campaign to replace the original church 
which had burned the previous year. Since its completion, the church has played an outsized 
role in the development of north side Kaukauna, providing a spiritual and social center for 
the strongly Catholic community, with a congregation which included French, German and 
Dutch members.

Holy Cross Church is a continuing symbol of the pioneer Catholics who participated in the 
fur trade, helped to build the locks and dams, and established farms along the Fox River. 
It was the original French Catholic parish of Kaujtauna. The original members of the congre­ 
gation attended services in Little Chute at the parish of Father Theodore Van der Broek, s. 
and included French-Canadian farming and trading families such as the Grignons.(B). The 
earlier church on the site was built in 1873, and in the mid-1870s Fannie Grignon, a daughter 
of Kaukauna*s famous pioneer family, served as teacher of Holy Cross School.(C). The erection 
of the original Holy Cross was hailed as a comlng-of-age for north Kaukauna by contemporaries, 
so that the predominately Catholic residents of the community would no longer have to go 
out of town to attend services (B).



Holy Cross Church (309 Besnoyer Street) 
Intensive Survey Form - Continuation Sheet (2)

Historical Statement (continued):

The present church is more recent than the 1898 St. Mary 1 s Church, but historically St. 
Mary's was an offshoot of Holy Cross. As the older parent congregation, the north side 
Holy Cross was faced with a major loss when its pioneer church was destroyed in the 1913 ^ 
fire, and it had the example 6ftthe elegant exuberance of the design of its daughter 
church, south side St. Mary's. But the parish opted for a new design which was both 
handsome and manageagle in size, reflecting the relative stability of Kaukauna's growth in 
the teens and twenties as opposed to the boom period of the f 80s and $90s which produced 
St. Mary's (B). Taken for its own sake, withou£ comparisons with the larger St. Mary's, 
Holy Cross reflects the ethnic traditions of European design and the heritage of its 
French, German and Dutch founders in an attractive and cohesive whole. It is an obvious 
and enduring north Kaukauna landmark.

USGS Quad and UTM Reference:

UTM: Zone 16 
Easting: 398750 
Northing: 4903990 
USGS Kaukauna Quadrangle 
1:24,000



HOLY CROSS Church & School

309 Desnoyer St. - Kaukauna
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A. Church - Orig. Bldg,

B. Addition -

C. Addition -

D. Addition -

2 story, 1st floor is class rooms 
2nd floor is convent & chapel.

1 story for classrooms 

gym & cafeteria

Boundaries of nominated property


